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March 24, 1986

Office of General Counsel
Federal Election Committee
1325 K Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463
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Dear Sir or Madam:

A formal complaint is being lodged, with this letter, against the Nevada
Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association for violations of the Federal Election
Campaign Act during 1988, Documentation is provided to support the charge
that the Association did not register as a political committee as required by
law. Contributions and expenditures exceeding $1,000 per calendar year were
made and not reported in the Association's attempt to influence the outcome of
elections for the U.S. Congress.

The Association formally filed Articles of Incorporation with the Nevada o
Secretary of State on October 25, 1988 with a list of officers being filed on’T
December 22, 1988. The articles of incorporation state: o

That the Corporation shall be a non-profit corporation organized
solely for educational and charitable purposes, including for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that
qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 . . . . Notwithstanding any other
provisions of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on
any other activities not permitted to be carried on . . . by a
corporation exempt from Federal Income Tax under Section 501 (c)

a3)....

Citizen Alert has intervened in the application of the Association with the
Internal Revenue Service for 501 (c) (3) status. The political activities,
which form the basis of this complaint, do not appear to be appropriate for an
organization that seeks the 501 (c) (3) status.

On July 27, 1988, the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association received a
bulk-mail permit from the U.S. Postal Service. A series of mailings were made
prior to the November election to Nevada sportsmen in an attempt to influence
their votes for candidates for the U.S. Congress. The enclosed mailings carry
either an implied, or clear endorsement of the Republican candidates for the

U.S. Senate and House of Representatives. From July 27, 1988 to October 31,
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1988 the Association spent $13,936.42 in postage for mailings that included
materials designed to influence the Federal election. (Other expenditures,
such as artwork, printing costs, mailing labels, and handling cannot be
determined precisely without an inquiry of the organization.g

Between July 1988 and the November election the Association placed
advertisements in local papers that were intended to raise money, members and
influence the Federal elections.

In the October 1988 issue of the Southwest Outdoor & Recreation Newsletter a
full-page color advertisement appeared stating:

IF YOU WANT TO CONTINUE TO HUNT, FISH AND ENJOY NEVADA'S GREAT
OUTDOORS, VOTE. NEVADA SPORTSMEN & OUTDOORSMEN ASSOCIATION
ENDORSES HECHT, VUCANOVICH & LUSK

Senator Hecht, Congressman Vucanovich were Republican, incumbent members of
Congress, and Lucille Lusk was a Republican candidate for the House of
Representatives. The enclosed copy.of the ad rates for the Southwest Outdoor
& Recreation paper indicate that a full-page, back page advertisement is
$1200.

From just the money used for mailings and the cost of just one-full page
advertisement before the November election, it is clear that the Nevada
Sportsmen & Outdoorsmen Association exceeded the $1000 threshold which would
require the organization to "register as a political committee within 10 days
of exceeding the $1,000 threshold." We were formally informed by the FEC on
December 9, 1988 that the group was not registered [as] a political committee.
It is our understanding that such a registration would have required, among
other things, the formal reporting of contributions and expenses that were
made to influence a Federal election.

We believe the disclosure of the information required by FEC regulations and
the Federal Election Campaign Act would show that contributions to the Nevada
Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association were being made by organizations and
individuals who also contributed money directly to the candidates endorsed by
the Association. It is impossible to determine at this time whether the
contributions to the candidate's campaigns and also to the Association
exceeded the limits established by law. If the Association were to file those
reports, the information would presumably be available to make a further
determination whether additional violations of the Act occurred.

We have documented that significant amounts of money were collected and spent
by individuals calling themselves the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen
Association in an attempt to influence the outcome of a Federal election prior
to the filing of incorporation papers, bylaws, a list of officers, and tax
papers for the organization. Only one of the three candidates endorsed by the
Association won. Had none of the candidates won, we would still feel obliged
to file this complaint because the laws and regulations pertaining to Federal
elections must be enforced if we are to continue to strive to have fair,
representative elections. We trust that you will act on this complaint
promptly to ensure that the actions of the Association are not repeated and
that their fine serve as an indicator to others that no organization is above
the law.
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For your convenience a copy of the Association's incorporation papers and list
of officers has been provided so that you may contact them regarding this
complaint.

We look forward to hearing the outcome of this complaint.

Sincerely,

B@f{(( /041 :MB?L

Vincent

Mrio«f dspms o s I
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Keep Nevada
OPEN

< HECHT, VUCANOVICH & LUSK
won’t lock us out!

N

So far, thanks to Chic Hecht, we can still get to SOME of our favorite hunting,
"fishing and camping areas. But this could be our last season.

Note: “The SAME standoff that has paralyzed the Nevada delegation for several

~years will prevent the bill from passing until at least NEXT year..REID & BILBRAY
- FAVOR FAR MORE WILDERNESS than do...Senator Chic Hecht and Rep. Barbara

Vucanovich. The House passed (and Bilbray and Reid supported) a 731,000-acre bill
~in December, but Hecht blocked the bill in the Senate.” (Las Vegas Review Journal
10-12-88)

IF YOU WANT TO CONTINUE
TO HUNT, FISH AND
ENJOY NEVADA’S GREAT OUTDOORS,

VOTE.

NEVADA SPORTSMEN & OUTDOORSMEN ASSOCIATION
'ENDORSES HECHT, VUCANOVICH & LUSK.
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Keep Nevada
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So far, thanks to Chic Hecht, we can still get to SOME of our favorite hunting,
fishing and camping areas. Bui iints couid be our last season.

Note: “The SAME standoff that has paralyzed the Nevada delegation for several
years will prevent the bill from passing until at least NEXT year.. REID & BILBRAY
FAVOR FAR MORE WILDERNESS than do...Senator Chic Hecht and Rep. Barbara
Vucanovich. The House passed (and Bilbray and Reid supported) a 731,000-acre bill
in December, but Hecht blocked the bill in the Senate.” (Las Vegas Review Journal

10-12-88)
IF YOU WANT TO CONTINUE
TO IHHUNT, FISH AND
ENJOY NEVADA’S GREAT OUTDOORS,

VOTE.

NEVADA SPOR TSN TS QOUTDOORSMEN ASSOCIATION
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P.O. Box 60148, Las Vegas, Nevada 89160
(702) 732-3311

FULL PAGE $800
(10374 Wx 14 H)

1/2 PAGE $500
(104 Wx 7 H)

1/4 PAGE $300
(63/8 Wx 68 H)
(43186 Wx 9 H)

1/8 PAGE $175
(63/8 Wx 3 H)
(4 1/4 Wx 4 172 H)

BUSINESS CARD $75
(414 Wx 2 H)
(21716 Wx 4 H)

BACK PAGE

FULL PAGE $1200
(10 3/4 W x 14 H)

1/2 PAGE . $700
(103/4 Wx 7 H)

Nonzwmmgtbrmomy.

SOUTHWEST OUTDOOR & RECREATION
PUBLISHES ON THE FIRST
THURSDAY OF THE MONTH

COPY DEADLINE: Monday, 10 days prior to publica-
tion. Ad copy should be typed, double-spaced and
accompanied by a layout or past publication.
CAMERA-READY: Friday, 6 days prior to publication.
Space reservation needed 10 days prior to publication.
PROOFS: Fumished on “non camera-ready” ads if
received prior to deadline. No proofs on late or "cam-
era-ready” ads. '

FREQUENCY DISCOUNT: See back page.

AD PRIORITY: Determined by order in which ads are
received after deadline are accepted on a “space
available” basis.

PLACEMENT: Position charges apply to back page
only, except with contract.

CLASSIFED RATES: $5 per ad, 25 word maximum.
Due Monday, prior to first Thursday of each month.
RC #2 ¥1/88
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0. Box 60143, Las Vegas, Nevada 89160
(702) 732-3311

CONTRACT/FREQUENCY
DISCOUNT

1. To eam a discount ad must be a minimum of 1/4
page and must be same Size running consecu-
tively.

2. To eam discount, ad must be inserted with
contract for a minimum of 3 consecutive
months.

3. Eamned discount will be credited towards net
payment of third edition. This credit to be shown on
biliing statement.

4. Percentage of discount policy:

3 5% @ editions 1 thru 3.

7.5% @ 3 consecutive editons 4 thru 6.
7.5% @ 3 consecutive editons 7 thru 9.

~ 10% @ 3 consecutive editons 10 thru 12.
~ COLOR COSTS
CPULL PAGE ... ceeteseeet s sesssisessenens $50.00
H/2 PAGE........coovvurrirrreenrenrrecssssrsanessssesssranssns $25.00
/4 PAGE.......eoeeecrersnenessasssessssnesessasssossosases $15.00
LABPAGE.......ovo s sveeesssisess i sesiaens $10.00
e For futher information call
® Sosllucedl
TDosee ~ecREAT]
“OEDICATED TO JREAT WEEKEMDS™
P.O. Box 60145
Las Vegas, Nevada 89160

(702) 732-3311
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™at ve, the undernigned. for the puppose of ascoriation to eatabdlsah

nen-prof it corparation for charitable, etwational, and eleenvanynery purposes )

gurcuant te the provicviens of N.R.S. RI.200 to 1. W am lusave, Jo utr.l
record and file these Articles of lnvorperation, 1n writing, and we 4o heredw

|
certify: 4
. |
That the name of the corperation shall be !
NEVADA SPORTSMES AND (M TSIANRSMEN ANMYIAT IS
1.

That the Corporation shall be o none-profit corporation orgamised solely '
for educational and charitable purpeses, ancluding for such purposes, the
aakang of distributions to organigations that quelify as exeapt organssatons
under Sevtaon SMG I of the Internal Revenue Code of 1SS (or the
correspondang provision of any future t'nited States laternal Revenue Law!?.

1.

The County and State where the prancipal office tor the transaction of
the bussness of the Corporation shall be located in Clark County.  The tnataon
of the offices tor the prinvipal trausavtions of business shall be: S0 W
(shey Avenue, las Vegas, levada W02,

iy,
That there snall de 6o lens than three nor Bore than sesen 91 Trustees for

one year teres The elevtion of the Trustees shall B governed By the

provisivie of the My-laws of the Corpviation.
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That the names and residences of the Trusteen chosen for the (irst gear ore

as follm:

W . Wan VRristiansen S112 ¥. (ahey |
Les Vegas, Nevada Wl

0. Marry Pappes 1224 Vashman Prave :
tas Vegas, Nevada 0 )

W . Chatles Bendach 1411 Commer e
Las Vegas, Nevada SN2

1
.

i
\l.
N parr?t of the net carnmings of the corpvration shall inure to the depef 0.

of, o1 be dintradutable to, 1ty seabers, trustees, oftsiers, or other pravate

Fersons, entpt that the corporation shall be authorized and ecapwered ' pavy

e e me e — e—————— A ——

reaswnable coepensatson  tor  sersiies tendered and to ke payaents  and
dastrabutson an furthetam e ot the purposes set forth sn Artcle |1 herent.
Notwithatandang any other provisieons of these artacles, the corpiation shall i
At carey on any other activities not permitted to B carried on l4) by a
corporation exeapt from bPederal I ome Tan under Sevtaon WM (o) (3 of the
Internal Resenue Code ot 1988 (or the corresponding provisions of any tuture !
tasted States Internai Revenue Law ) or (b by 4 corpeorataon, contridutians, to

whach are Jeductable under section 170 (0) (20 of the Internal Revenue SWde of

0SS 1or the ccrespending provisions of any future timated Mates fnteenal

Resecnue Law .
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Upen the dosaslution of the corporation, the Board of Trustees Wall, after

paying or making prevision for the payment of all of the liadilsties of the

corperat ion, dispene of all of the assets of the corporations enclunively for

the purpases of the cerperation n such msnner, or (o surh orgamisation or

organisat ions organised and operated enclusively for charitable, edwation, ;
religious, oF scientifie purposes as shall ot the tiee qualify as an onoﬂ;
organigat ion or organiget 1ons under section SO1 (M) of the (nternal lnrmni
Cade of 1934 (or the correspending provisiens of any future tmited su'né

Internal Revenuer Lav), as the Board of Trustees shall deteragne. My s h

assets not o Jisposed of shall be Jisposed of by the Mistract Coure of the

County an which the principal oftice of the sorptation g8 then I.\a'd.i
enclusively 1or such purposes or te such organigation or organizations, as su.ﬁ'
Court shall Jdetermine, whivh are oreanized and operated esvluvively for wrhf
purpeses .

IN WITNESS WHIREDE . the undersigned invorperators have eanciuted these

Artacles of Incorporation on this /z‘.h_\' of (N tober , fUSS,

|
i
|
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(] 'Ml‘_{"d oy of LB biu, . 1IN, before oe persenslly apprared
Wr. Nas Christiancen, hnaum e be the pereon deacribed 1n and whe one. wted tml

feregeing tnstrument, ohe duly achnowledges to @ that he exeiuted the ale,

freely and coluntarily and for the uses and purposes therern .nmm.i.?
1
!
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STATE OF NPVAMA )
s

CONTY M CLARN ) '

W this zz‘_.hy of @‘_F o 1NN betore me personal ly appeared

W. Narry Pappac. hnoen to be the person described 1n and whe enciuted the

foregoing instrument, vhe July achnwledges to me that he enecuted the sape,
i
freely and voluntarily and tor the uses and purpeses theresn nn'uw.l.:

STATE OF NEVADA )
(X

COUNTY OF CLARK )

b
-
W this .1'/' day of o Urogcc, o 109, before me personally aneand’

|
Wr. Charles Benetict, known to be the person Jescribed in and who esevuted the
|

foregoing instrument, who duly acknowledges to me that he emecuted the same,

fieely and voluntarily and for the uses and purpeses therein oent ioned.

—— ¢ . Fom——. > e o
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D C 20463

Citizen Alert
FO Box 1481
Las Vegas,

Attn:

NV 89125
BRill Vincent

Dear M+r. Vincent:

This letter acknowledges receipt on April 4,

complaint alleging possible
Campaign Act of 1971%,
Sportsmen

as amended
and Outdoorsmen Association.

RE: MUR 2844

1989, of your
violations of the Federal Election
(the “Act"), by the Nevada
The respondents will be

notified of this complaint within five days.

You will be notified as soon as the Federal Election Commis-

sion takes final action on your complaint.
additional information in this matter,

any

the Office of the General Counsel.
to in the same manner as the original complaint.

sworn
numbered this matter MUR 2844.
all future correspaondence.

tached a brief description of
handling complaints.

Retha Dixon, Docket Chief, at

Enclosure
Frocedures

1f you have any questions,

Should you receive
please forward it to
information must be
We have

Please refer to this number in
For your information, we have at-
the Commission’'s procedures for
please contact

Such

(202) 3I76-3110.

Sincerely,
Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel
oy =P
George F. ishe
Acting Associate General
Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D € 204618

Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen
Association

S332 W. Oakey Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89102

Attn: Max Christiansen

RE: MUR 2844
Nevada Sportsmen and
OQutdoorsmenr Associ1ation

Dear Mr. Christiansen:

The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
alleges that the Nevada Sportsmen and Cutdoorsmen Association may
have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as
amended (the "Act”). A copy of the complaint is enclosed. We
have numbered this matter MUR 2844. Please refer to this number
in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opportunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against the Nevada
Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association in this matter. Please
submit any factual or legal materials which you believe are
relevant to the Commission’'s analysis of this matter. Where
appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath. Your
response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel- s
Office, must be submitted within 15 days of receipt of this
letter. If no response is received within 135 days, the Commis—
sion may take further action based on the available information.

This matter will remain confidential in accordance with Sec-
tion 4Z7g(a) (4) (B) and Section 437g9(a) (12) (A) of Title 2 unless
vou notify the Commission im writing that you wish the matter to
22 made oubiiz, I4 you itnt2nd to be reepresented bv counsel 1n
this matter, pleace advise the Commission by completing the
znclased form stating the name, address, and telephaone number of
such ccocuncel, and authcr:izinrg such ccunsel to receive any
ncoctifications and other communications from the Commission.




I1f you have any questions, please contact Jeff Long, the
staff person assigned to this matter, at (202) 376-56%0. For
vour information, we have attached a brief description of the
Commission ‘s procedures for handling complaints.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

e R’

Bv: George ~. Riszhel
Actina Asscciate General
Counseal

—oZiosures
. Complaint
2. Frocedures
. Designaticn of Counsel! Statement
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Max G. Christiansen
5332 West Oakey Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

April 26, 1989

General Counsel's Office
Attention: George F. Rishel
Acting Associate General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
1325 K Street, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20463

RE: MUR 2844
Nevada Sportsmen and
Outdoorsment Association

Dear Mr. Rishel:

We are in receipt of your April 11, 1989, letter which states
that you have received a complaint which alleges that the Nevada Sportsmen
and Qutdoorsmen Association may have violated the Federal Election Campaign
Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act").

Initially, our organization was formed with hunters and fishermen
and outdoorsmen who have a sincere concern over the Wilderness issues. Our
group is dedicated to preserving the wilderness but still allowing us to fish,
hunt and explore the great outdoors of our state. The restrictions that are
documented in the "Wilderness Act" would deprive many of us of these pursuits,

We must emphasize that at no time were we aware that we may have
been in violation of existing federal and/or state laws. OQur only goal is to
try to prevent any additional annexation of our state lands into the
"Wilderness" restrictions. We plead innocent to any willful violation of
existing federal or state laws.

Our group was not involved in political activities. We were
simply trying to protect our wilderness rights in the best way we knew how.
If in this effort we may have been in violation of Federal Acts, we can assure
you, it was not intentional.




General Counsel's Office -2~ April 26, 1989

As of April 1, our organization has elected new officers that will
be directing the activities of the Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association. If
we erred in any past conduct, be assured that we will take all possible
measures to guarantee that no future actions on the part of our Association
will be undertaken that could be construed as being in violation of the Act.

Very truly yours,

Christiansen
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RENO, NEVADA 89513 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89125
(702) 827-4200 (702) 382-5077

April 30, 19898

George F. Rishel

Acting Assistant General Counsel
Office of General Counsel
Federal Election Committee

999 E. St., N.W,

Washington, D.C. 20463

Dear Mr. Rishel:

A formal complaint has been lodged with your office by Citizen Alert
against the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association for violations
of the Federal Election Campaign Act during 1988. In that complaint we
stated that the Association had spent $13,936.42 in postage fees from
July 27, 1988 to October 31, 1988. In this letter we provide additional
documentation to support our earlier complaint.

The enclosed records from the U.S. Postal Service indicate that the

final mailing under the Association's bulk mail permit occurred just

prior to the November election. In response to our inquiry of February
11, 1989 to the Internal Revenue Service concerning the filing of papers
by the Association for 501 (¢) (3) status, we have learned from the San
Francisco office that the Association has not filed those papers., The
incorporation papers we previously supplied to the Commission indicate -
the intent of the Association was to incorporate as a 501 (c) (3)
organization. We believe these two findings strongly suggest that a
primary purpose of the Association was the election of Republican
candidates to Congress who supported little, if any wilderness, for
Nevada. Such a purpose not only conflicts with the stated purpose of
the organization in their incorporation papers, but appears to violate :
Federal law.

Sinierely, .
Bt Y ean B

Bill Vincent

BOARD OF DIRECTORS STAFF
PHYLLIS KAISER SUSAN ORR BLAIR McGIRK BOB FULKERSON FIELDING McGEHEE, I
Reno. NV Washoe Valiey, NV Reno, NV Executive Drector Reno Otfice
DAVID WIGHT CARO PEMBERTON KIT MILLER GRACE BUKOWSK! BILL VINCENT
Reno, NV San Francsco, CA Carson City, NV Reno Office Las Vegas Othice
JO ANNE GARRETT BiLL ROSSE JUDY TREICHEL
Baker, NV Austin, NV Las Vegas, NV

Full citizen participation for democratic decisions on issues that atfect our lives. Nonprofit — tax deductible.




U.8. POSTAL SERVICE

A"LICATION TO MAIL WITHOUT AFFIXING POSTAGE STAMPS

NAME OF APPLICANT (Mint or type)

NEVADA SPORTSMAN AND OUTDOORSMAN ASSOCIATION

uired fee.

APPLICANT 'S TELEPHONE NO.

(702) 38k-14T71

RESP OF APPLICANT (Strees, Apt./Suise No., City, Swete and ZIP Code) (Print or Type)

T 2121 S. HIGHLAND AVE.

LAS VEGAS,

- Yoo

NV 89102

EACH MAILING

T00.

AVERAGE NUMBER OF MECES IN

CLASS OF MAIL MATTER

OfinrsT
(M RCILTY

0 secono
0O fouRTH

A 3 o

DATE

7. 27-58

TO BE COMPLETED
BY POSTMASTER h

AMOUNT Trl! COLLIOCTED
C _
s Zw, di—

PERMIT NUMBER

[0&/

OATE OF ISBUANCE

7/.17[&“{/

[POSTMASTER . Retain

P8 Form 3601, July 1980

ication in your file. When a

roved, deliver authorization to permit holder.
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g = Pormit No.
3. Pacsstl Saryice te all items by typewriter, pen or indclible
ATEMENT OF MAILING WITH| Prepere if receipt is desired. Check for instructions 1081
PERMIT IMPRINTS your postmaster regarding box labeled “RCA Oftices.
Post Office of Mailing Date Receipt No. Mailing Siatement Sequence No.
Las Vegas, NV 89199 8/5/88 ,
Chack spplicable box 2ngd Cless 4th Class
O tnsernational 3 Newspepers end O Library Rete &
151 Closs e ruste. D Special 4th Class Single Piece pRNIs /< S B
[0 2P + 4 Nonpresors  thirdcless rate O Presort Special 4th Class
3rd Cless Fiey. il
0 2P + 4 Presort
O Carrier Route Q Carrier Route
O Presort First-Class .| S-digit O 6¢her (Specify)
O Singte Piece Basic ) 3
O Single Piece
Processing Cetegory (Sce DMM 123] Weight of a singie piece RCA Offices:
B Letters O trreguler Parcels e —— —— —bs. !
O Flass O Outside Parcels . - TOTAL IN MAILING NUMBER OF
O Machinable Parcels . Pieces Pound Sacks Travs Pailets Other Con-
tainers
95 3
Name and Address of Permit Telephone No. POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Holder (Include ZIP Code) 38L-1471 R I — No. Pounds Rate/Pound Postage
Nevada Sportsman and Rate Postage Charge s
Outdoorsman Association 2 2P+ 4 No. Qual_Pieces | Rate Per Pioce Postage
x| 2121 S. Highland Ave, Presort s
Las Vegas, NV 89102 " Presort First No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
| O check if non-profit under 623. DMM® Class _ $
Name and Address of Individual or Organization for which 4. Zip+4 No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
mailing is prepared (If other than permit holder) Nonpresort $
o) . : 5. No Qual. Preces | Rate Per Piace Postage
4 : Carrier Route
R ' ) Piece $
n pt A Rates G _ No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
O Check if non-profit under 623. DMM® Sdigit 897. ¢ 0.132 118.L40k4
© Name snd Address of Mailing Agent (// other than permit ) No. Qual. Pieces [ Rate Per Piece Postage
| hotder) Basic L8. s 0.167 8.016
i 8. Rate Category |No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
< s
h§. Postage
c SUBTOTAL (1 through 8) ’ 126.420
— 10. Additional Postage Payment (State reasons for additional postage payments) No. Pieces Rate/Piece Postage
o 11. O Check if applicable third class bulk piece rate is paid by meter. (Form 3602-PC requircd)
Total Postage
12. TOTAL POSTAGE (9 plus 10) where apphcable) ’
$126.420
*The signature of a nonprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mnailing does not violate section 623.5 DMM and (2) Only the mailer’s matter is being mailed; and
(3) This 15 not 4 cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges: and (4) This mailing has not
been undertaken by the mailer on behalf of or produced for another person or orgamization that is not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges.
Willful entry of falsc, fictitious or fraudulcnt siatements or represeniations hereon punishable
by fine up to $10.000 or imprisonment up to S vears, vr both (18 USC 1001}
Signature of Permit Jigider or Agent /Both principal and agent arc hablegjor any postaxe deficiency incurred) Telephone No.
7 . |
- < .
P 7 %/ZL/// Yy 1Yy
| CERTIFY that this mailing has been mspected to venl/h./n qualifies for the rate ol postage being puid, and Round Stame (Rmuedll
that it is properly prepared (and presarted where required) and that the statement of maiing has been verified i
and the necessary annual foehubecnpa |
Signaturs of Weigher Time 1’
5 FSOoM |

PS Form 3602, Apr. 1935 FINANCIAL DOCUMENT - FORWARD TO FINANCE orncs
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) mmummu:mm

\ it Ne.
¢ UK. Hﬁm u all items by typewriter, pen oz indelible
TATEMENT OF MAILING WITH te if receipt is desired. Check for instructions [ 1081
PER“QT IMPRINTS yous pumuta regarding box labeled “RCA Ottices.”
Post Office of Mailing _n.u_____.r.n‘.,nm\ Mailing Statement Ssquence Na.
LAS VEGAS, NV 89199 9/1k / 88
Check applicable box 2nd Class 4th Class 9 9 ‘Q—
O Internationsl O Newspapers and O Librery Rate
15t Class mm:":d O Specisl 4th Class Single Pi
O zIP + 4 Nonpresort cl:liw.chu rate O Presort Special 4th Class 8 , —
rd Class ) <3 ’_\
O zip + 4 Presort . 6
ey Roste 0 Carrier Route \S/
O Presort Firse-Class B S-digit O ocher (Specify) Gl :_2
O Single Piece Basic -
O] Singte Piece
Processing Category /Secc ~8) quh piece CA Offices:
Gd Letters O Irvegular Parcels | : D e e o
O Flaes O Outside Percels . - TOTAL IN MAILING NUMBER OF
0O Machinable Parcels Pieces Pound Sacks Trays Paliets Other Con-
5 tainers
232 ) 1
Name and Address of Telepphone No. POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Holder (Include ZIP Code a&k
I 384 T o B bound Fats No. Pounds Rate/Pound Postage
Nevada Sportsman and ate Postage Charge $
Outdoorsman Association 2 Jipea No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
-4 2121 S. Highland Ave. Presort $
Las Vegas, NV 89102 3. Presont First No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
€1 O Check it non-profit under 623. DMM® Class , s
.1 Name and Address of Individual or Organization for which 4. ZiP+a No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
mailing is prepared (If other lh_an permit holder) Nonpresort $
4 7 ! S. No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
. .4 ' Carrier Route
. : . Pisce $
b S 1 A Rates 6. ' No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
O Check if non-profit under 623. DMM® S-dign 232 s 0.132 30.62
™ Name and Address of Mailing Agent (If other than permit RA . No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
holder) Basic
T $
; 8. Rate Category |No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
w‘r $
9. Postage
-+ SUBTOTAL (1 through 8) ’ 30.62
(»L 10. Addituunal Postage Payment (State reasons for additional postage payments) No. Pieces Rate/Piece Postage
A 11. O Check it applicable third class bulk piece rate is paid by meter. (Form 360.2-PC reyuired)
Total Postage
12. TOTAL POSTAGE (9 plus 10/ where apphicabte) ’ $ 30.62
*The signature of a nonprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing dues not violate section 623.5 DMM and (2) Only the mailer's matter s being mailed; and
(3) This is not a cooperative mailing with other persons ur organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mailing has not
been undertaken by the mailer on behalf of or produced tor another person or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mading privileges.
Willful entry of false. jictitious or jraudident statements or represeniations hereon punishable
by fine up to $10,000 or imprisonment up to S vears, or both (18 USC 1001)
SiS\zum of P, Ider or Agent (Both pripsypal and ugeni arc liably jor any postage deficiency incurred) Telephone No.
A\~ /
L CERTIFY that this mailing has been inspected to ven4 that it qualifies for the rate of postage being puid, and Round Stamp (Requirea
that it 1s properly prepared ( € IC 1 al_the statement of muiling has been verified
and the necessary an fce has been paid.
Signeture ?‘ \%/ q Time

PS Form 3602~ Apr. 198> U.S. GPO : 1986 0 ~ 169-353 FINANCIAL DOCUMENT — FORWARD TO FINANCE OFFICE




ZONE RATED MAIL USE FORM 3008

n&: 3602, Apr. 1988

e [Permit No.
3 U.S. Peswsl Suryice MAILEK: plete all items by typewriter, pen or indclible k
STATEMENT OF MAILING WITH Prepase in duplicate if’ reccipt is desired. Chack for instructions from 1081
PERMIT IMPRINTS your postmaster regarding box labeled “RCA Oftices.”
Post Office ot Mailing Date Receipt No. Mailing Statement Sequence No.
: LAS VEGAS, NV 89199 ) 9/16/88 .
Check spplicable box 2n Class 4th Class
O Internationsl D Newspapers and O Lidrary Rate "(
15t Class e ensicaste” Ol Special 4th Class Single Piece - 7’7 '
O zip + 4 Nonpresor: third<class rate O Presort Special 4th Class 9 b (
O 3rd Cless z A
ZIP + 4 Presort (
O Cerrier Route C) Carrier Route %
O Presort First.Class 23 S-digit O Ovher (Specify) V)
O Single Piece e
O Single Piece
Processing Category (Sec DMN 123) Weight of a single piece RCA Offices:
G Letters Q Irregular Parcels : e s
O Flars 01 Outside Parcels TOTAL IN MAILING NUMBER OF
O Machinable Parcels’ Piaces Pound Sacks Trays Pallets Other Con-
tainers
Lo3. 1
Name and Address of Permit Telephone No. POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Holder (Include ZIP Code) 38L4-14T1 Pound | ' Pound Rate | VO Pounds Rate/Pound Postage
NEVADA SPORTSMAN AND Rate Postage Charge $
’J OUTDOORSMAN ASSOCIATION 2. Jppsa No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
2121 S. HIGHLAND AVE. : Presort $
T1 LAS VEGAS, NV 89102 3 Presort First | NO- Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
3 Check if non-profit under 623. DMM® Class $
s
Name and Address of Individual or Orgenization for which 4. 2p+4 No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
~ | mailing is prepared (I/ other than permit holder) Nonpresort s
. o4 : 5. No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
) . }: : P Carrier Route s
oA (L -} ,
- Rates 5. ‘ No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Pisce Pmuqﬁ'?a'C :
™1 O Check if non-profit under 623. DMM* S-digit 483 377 ¢ 0.132 5320
™ . . 7. No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Posta
Name and Address of Mailing Agent (/f other than permit ) ge
C .
holder) : Basic QQ s . /C, 7 y 315
< : 8. Rate Category | No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
$
- Postage
SUBTOTAL (1 through 8) P>
¢ 110. Additional Postage Payment (State reasons for additional postage payments) No. Pieces Rate/Piece Posta
$ —;’-83-.-39_
~
“ 1 11. O Check if applicable third class buik piece rate is paid by meter. (Farm 3602-PC requirced
f canired S4-s0
0 _ ’ Total Postage
12. TOTAL POSTAGE (9 plus 10) where applicable) $ 54
*The signature of a nonprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing does not violate section 623.5 DMM and (2) Only the mailer’s matter s being inailed ; und
(3) This is not a cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mading has not
been undertaken by the mailer on behalt of or produced for another pesson or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mathing privileges.
Willpul entry of jalse, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations hereon punishable
by fine up 10 $10.000 or imprisonment up to 5 vears, or both (18 USC 1001).
%it HolEsr or Agent 48nth principal and agent are liuble Jor any posiage defictoney incurred) Telephone No.
1> T
1 CERTIFY that this mailing has been inspected to verify that it qualifies for the rate of postage being puid, and
that it is properly prepared (and presorted where required) and that the statement of mailing has been verified ¢
and the necessary annual fee has been paid. \
Signature of Weigher - Time \
AM.
‘ // 5%

PS Form 3602, Ap:. 1985 U.S. GPO : 1986 O - 169-353 FINANCIAL DOQUMENT ~ FORWARD TO FINANCE OFFICE




"Permit Na.
MA e all items by typewriter, pen or indclible
Prepare te if receipt is desired. Check for instructions (r
"ﬂmf IMPRINTS your postmaster regarding box labeled “RCA Oflices.” 1081
Post Ottice of Mailing Date Receipt No. Msiling Statement Sequence No.
LAS VEGAS, NV 89199 9/21/88 4——_
Check appliceble box 2nd Class 4th Class 2
O Internationsl (] Ncmp:pcn ':.dnd O Lidrary Rate v Q 3 9\ ~—
16t Class ot the epplicable ) Special 4th Class Single Piece
P+ 4N thirdclass rate (3 Presort Special 4th Class C.[
QO z1 onpresort it 7 é .
O Z1P + 4 Presort o 7 / DY
D Carrier Route D Carrier Route .
[ Presort First-Class B S~disit O Ocher (Specify)
O Single Piece Basic
0 Single Piece
Processing Category /See DMM ]28) Weight of a single pisce RCA Offices:
& Letrers O trregular Parceis f— —— —— ——bs.
Q Fars Gl Ouirde. Parcdls f———_TOTAL IN MAILING NUMBER OF
Q) Machinable Parcels - Pm’s \ Pound Sacks Trays Paliets Other Con-
’ tainers
(I bs3.
Name and Address of Permit Telephone No. S POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Holder (Include ZIP Code) 384-1471 Pound T e enind Bate No. Pounds Rate/Pound Postage
Nevada Sportsman and Rate Postage Charge s
Outdoorsman Association 2 Zipea No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
™ 2121 S. Highland Ave. Presort $
” Las Vegas, NV 89102 3 presort First No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
O Check it nonprofit under 623. DMM® Class . $
.| Name and Address of individual or Organization for which 4. 2P+ 4 No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
mailing is prepared (/f other than permit holder) Nonpresort $
s ' . 5. No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
. LI ) ) Carrier Route
- Piece d ﬁ% é N
IR Rates - ] No. Qual. Pieces Rate Per Piece P -
O Check if non-rofit under 623. DMM* Sdot 3 B 2Ug— s 0.132 Y607
r Name and Address of Mailing Agent (/f other than permit 1. . No. Qual. Pieces ﬁltg Per Piece Postage
o holder) Basic [SFeFT | 0.167 13—
) 8. Rate Category | No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece a?l’oaf‘?j . 9. /
A $
9. Postage
C SUBTOTAL (1 through 8) ’ -
-y 10. Additional Postage Payment (State reasons fur additional postage payments) No. Pieces Rate/Piece Postage
-
o 11. [0 Check if applicabie third class bulk piece rate is paid by meter. (Form 3602-PC requured) / 6 3 i 8 \-\\
Total Postage |
12. TOTAL POSTAGE (9 plus 10) where applicable) » $ 63 LI
*The signature ot a nonprolit mailer certifies that: (1) The maiing does not violate section 623.5 DMM and (2) Only the mailer’s matter s being maied ; and
3) This is not a cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled Lo special bulk inaiting privileges: and (4) This mading has not
been undertaken by the mailer on behalf of or produced for another person or orgamization that is not entitled to special bulk mailling privileges.
Willgul entry of palse, ictitious or fraudulent statements or represcntations hereon punishable
by fine up to $10.000 ur imprisonment up 1o 5 vears. or both (18 USC 1001 )
Signature of Per der or Agent (Both principal and axent arc lwblagur any postage deficiency incurred) Telephone No. ,‘
5 e
/ a2z, 2 ) «
7 . el R Requi
1 CERTIF‘Y(M! this mailing has becn inspected to‘(cn{!hut it qualifics the rate ot postage being puad, and ound Stamp (Requirea!
that it is properly prepared (and presorted that the statement o mailing has been verified
and the necessary annual fee has beparpaid.
Signature of Weigher / Time
AM.
, - : (Qem

PS Form 3602, Apr. 1985 U.S. GPO : 1986 O - 169-353 FINANCIAL DOCUMENT — FORWARD TO FI ICE




; .n:

‘ng«'k-n
uur

'*':.-E.-' e
|
|

Poet Office of Malling Dave Reosipt No. Mailing Ststement Sequanse No. |
LAS VEGAS, NV 89199 9/28/88 | |
Check appiiceble Soa 4 Close #th Class e 7
O Corvier Rowe O Libvary Rase
O sasic Z7#+¢ O Special @k Class Single Piece
0 s-Digie 20+ 4 D Presont Special 4k Ciass . T T W
DD'OCW Ni s i il i ( I \\\ﬁ'~, ”4'
o u;? G *“5'" R
O Single Pioce Ple Rl
_i aaambi oW
Processing Category (See DMM 128) Woeight of a single piece
& Lenters . . ibs.
O trreguiar Parcets YQTAL IN MAILING PUNIER O I
O Fas O Ousside Parcels Pisces \ Peundn Sacks Tra Paliets Other Con- |
O3 Machinable Parcels s |
Name and Addrees of Parmit Telephone No> POSTAGE COMPUTATION |
Holder (inciude ZIP Code) 381‘_1)‘71 No. Pounds Rete/Pound Postage 3|
Nevada Sportsman and B papsuna o s
Outdoorsman Association
2121 S. Highland Ave. 2 zpes HOTQUL: RSN {RMERE R 2l e
Las Vegas, NV 89102 Bercoded
-~ O Check it nonprofit DMM 623° 3. s-digi No. Qual. Pieces l:nc Per Piece Postage i
Neme end Address of Individual or Organization for which EREES
7 | meiling is prepared ({f ocher than permis holder) 4. No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piece Postage
Basic 2P +4 s
W Piece
Retes |°g, No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Pisce Postage |
Carrier Route ’ i

n [J Check it nonprofit under DMM 823° 6. ‘ No. Qual. Pieces i:no Per Pisce Pmooe)/ ) C.{ (

5-digit

| Name snd’Address of Mailing Agent (If other than permis holder) @ { '7 66— 0.132 S5+2F—_

7. No. Quel. Pieces l:no Per Piece Postage

(o Basi —05— 0.167 RL2 .,

“7 3 (7[ ~ g~ >4

oy 8. " | No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece Postgge-c” * 3?

Rete Category ’
o
9. Post !
s SUBTOTAL (1 through 8) > &0.;'81\ .
10. Additional Pc;.ugo Payment (Stase reasons for additional posiage paymens on reverse side under No. of Pieces Rate/Piece Postege '
Commenis
: See reverse side $ yi i
1. ,
O Check if spplicabie third-class bulk piece rete is atfixed to each piece. (Form 3602-PC required) -
02. 87
12. Total Postage
TOTAL POSTAGE (9 pius 10) where spplicable > Fp—fr—— i
© The signature of a nonprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing does not violate section 623.S DMM; mi(Z)Onlylbemncr‘smmisbemgmu;nnd())nmisnou l
cooperative mailing with other persoas of organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mailing has not been undertaken by the mailer on |
behalf of or produced for another person or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges. !
The submission of a false, fictitious or fraudulent siatement may result in imprigpament of up to $ years and a fine of up to $10,000. (18 U.S.C. 1001) in addition, a civil penalry
ofupwssomnndumwmtofmm&zmthlulyclnmedmybelmpowd (31 U.S.C. 3802)
INIW%JHMWMMIOMBWMMM ndthnﬁhnmdwmedqwmg(onhemudmew. |
Telephone No.




w*m \ RATED MAIL USE FORM 3605 ”h Side B

U.S. Pestal Serviee MAILER: all issms by typowsiter, pea or indslible pencil.
STATEMENT OF MANLING WITH *-Iwhuu Mhmmmmw
PERMMT IPRINTS box labeled *“RCA Offices." 1081
Post Otfice of Malling Date
LAS VEGAS, NV 89199 10/11/88
Chack epplicable ben 3rd Clase 4th Class ;
(3 Carrier Rowe O Lisrary Ame
O Basic zP+4 O Special #h Class Single Piece
O s-0us 2P +4 O Preson Special @k Class
O 21P +¢ Barcoded
b 5-Digie
D sasic
a Single Piece
Processing Category (See DMM 128) Woeight of a single plece
. ;
o O trrepuiar Parcels TOTAL IN MAILING NUMBER OF
0 Fles O Owside Parcets Pces /5 7/ Secke Traye Peiets | Other Con-
tainers
O Mackinabie Parcels 6 (4 7
Name and Address of Permit Telephone No. POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Proder” (ncleis it Code) 38L-1L4T1 1, No. Founds Rate/Pound Postege
Pound Pound Reta (]
A P h,
Nevada Sportsman and Outdoorsman = SO R,
Association 2. #%a No. Quai. Pleces l:cn Per Piece Postage
2121 S, Highland Ave, Barcoded
DL‘:a;:‘= .\{'esas s NV ws.?g.zoﬁ 3 saan No. GualPieces | Mata Par Prece Postege
q :
Neme end Address of Individual or Organization for which P+
{neiling is prepered (lf osker than permir Nolder) 4. No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Piace Postage
Besic Z2IP +4 ¢
Piece
Retes ['g No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Pisce Postage
V\ ' Carrier Route
&} (3 Chack it nonprofit under DMM 623° 8. s-ion Wo/ Qudi‘Piaces | Rata Por Piace Postage
“Name and Address of Mailing Agent (If other than permit holder) 6565+ 0.132 5ere 98
q 7. No. Qual. Pieces l:no Per Piece Postage
L P é@ 2 . Basic
0 7 8. No. of Pisces Rate Per Piece Postage
g lr/ Rete Category 4
d ] Posts
oo ' SUBTOTAL (1 through 8} P> 4
-
"I 10. Additional P?uoo Payment (Siate reasons for additional possage paymen: on reverse side under No. of Piecss Rete/Pisce Postage
‘ [ See reversa side $
1.
O check it applicable third-class bulk piece rate is stfixed to each piece. (Form 3602-PC required) "? o 7‘7, &4 ,]'(
12. Total Postage —
TOTAL POSTAGE (9 pius 10) where applicable —>
* The signature of @ noaprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing does not violate section 623.5 DMM; and (2) Only the mailer’'s matter is being mailed; and (3) This is not a
cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mailing has not been undertaken by the mailer on
behalf of or produced for another person or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mailing pnvileges.
The subemission of a false, fictitious or fraudulent statement may result in imprispament of up to 5 years and a fine of up to $10,000. (18 U.S.C. 1001) In addition, & civil penalty
of up to $5,000 and an additional asscssment of twice the amount falsely claimed may be imposed. (31 U.S.C. 3802)
lm,muﬂhMWumhlomhmnundumhm,ndmnﬁhmwwmmmmemdmm
Signature 4 Boifl principal angd a gre liable for any postage deficiency incurred) Telephone No.
7“9 L O TN \'
A K ) ‘
- X g Bt R.quaiifies for.the raw of pastage being paid, and that &» TR (101t ‘ ;
i NP (nquired) snd that- e staensnt of meiling bas bese.varified and!the secessary b 2 c' &
.“. orad o '» i i w ": !
Sigrense st-Weigher - il < ; co\" V_ \
PR L A S ' /0_/9 Z_ AM. O - bé

PS Form 3602, Apr. 1988 TUS Gevernmest Sriating Offies: 1080—200078/79220 FINANCIAL DOCUMENT — FORWARD TO FINANCE OFFICE




Waeight of e single plece

4.

O Check if nonprotit under DMM 623°

TAL IN MAILING
O nas O Owsside Parcels Pleces Pounds Secks T Pakets Other Con
teiners
O Machinabie Parceis 2T,108. 3 ? ;C,
Name end Address of Permit T POSTAGE COMPUTATION /
Molder (imclude ZIP Code) meﬁ\ _,,/j No. Pounds Rete/Pound Fosiage
Pound Pound Rate [}
Nevada Sportsman and Outdoorsman Ban i ATl
Association 2. S No. Qual. Pieces | Rate Per Pisce Postage !
2121 S. Highland Ave. Barcoded ;
Las Vegas, NV 89102
0 Check H non .';m under DM 823° 3. B No. Qual. Pieces 2-:. Por Piece Postage
Neme end Address of Individual or Organization for which b ';
| maiting is prepared (If osker than permit holder) 4. No. Qual. Pieces l:ou Per Pisce Postage

Carrier Route

No. Quel. Pieces

Rete Per Pisce
$

Postage

Neme ond Address of Mailing Agent (lf other than permit holder)

6. No. Qual. Pieces | Rete Per Piece Postage
5-digit ¢
22,921. 0.132 3,025.57
7. No. Qual. Pieces l:no Per Piece Postage
Basic 4,187. 0.167 699.23
8. No. of Pieces Rate Per Piece Postage
Rate Category '

O] See reverse side

Postage i
SUBTOTAL (1 twough 8) B> | 3,724 .80 |
10. Additional P‘.;um Payment (Staie reasons for additional postage payment on reverse side under No. of Pieces Rate/Piece Postage

1.
O check it applicable third class bulk piece rate is affixed to each piece. (Form 3602-PC required)

12

TOTAL POSTAGE @ plus 10) where

pliceble

>

Total Postege
)

* The signature of a nonprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing does not violate section 623.5 DMM; and (2) Only the mailer’s matter is being mailed; and (3) This is not a
cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mailing has not been undertaken by the mailer on
behalf of or produced for another person or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges.

The submission of s false, fictitious or fraudulent statement may result in imprissnment of up to 5 years and a fine of up to $10,000. (18 U.S.C. 1001) In addition, & civil penalty
of up to $5,000 and an additional asscssment of twice the amount falsely claimed may be imposed. (31 U.S.C. 3802)

%Mmummaummm.mmmﬂwmuquun-tormemuuww.

Telephone No.

PS Form 3652._1_\pr. 1988

UL Gevernment

Priating Offien:  1980—309-870/79320




[ VT Ronsal Servioe or indelible poscil.

* STATEMENT OF MARING WITH | duplions isswactiess from yeur pestmaster
box labeled “*RCA Offices.” o

Post m of -
IASYEGAS, NV 89199 10/27/88

Check spplicable bex 3rd Clase 4¢h Class
O Corvior Rowe O Lisvary Rae
O dasic TP+ 4 O speciel sk Class Single Piece
0 s-Dige zir+ ¢ O Presons Special ek Class a. A , .
r S ‘_:vh‘ L - }' Mh\;; m,’?;’.':;‘:‘:.

)
2B

Processing Category (See DAMM 128) ] } ACA Offices:
O Lo O trreguiar Parcels TOTAL IN MAILING
O Faes O Owside Parcels Pieces Pounds Treye Paliets
O Machinebie Parceis T093 -

Name and Address of Permit T NO. POSTAGE COMPUTATION
Molder (inciude ZIP Ceds) 33’:- 1472 ”

] No. Pounds ARate/Pound
Nevada Sportsman and Pound Rete s

Outdoorsman Association Rastim e
2121 S, Highland Ave. : ~ | No. Qual. Pisoee

2P+4
Las Vegas, NV 89102 Barcoded

=8 Check it nonprofit under DMM 623° ‘ s-digh No. Qual. Piecea

[ Hiame end Address of Individual or Orgenizstion for which P+
-mailing is prepared ({f ocher than permit Aolder)

. . Besic ZIP +4

No. Qual. Pieces

No. Qual. Pieces | Rste Per Piece
Carrier Route ¢

E Check # nonprofit under DMM 623° . No. Qual. Pieces l:au Per Pisce Postage
-digi
Name and Address of Malling Agent (I other than permir holder) o 6663. 0.132 879.52
No. Qual. Pieces :-u Per Piece Postage
L30. 0.167 71.81

No. of Pieces l:au Per Piece Postage

Rate Cstegory

SUBTOTAL (1 theough 8) P> ng?%‘:[ .33

| 10. Additonal Po)otm Payment (Siaste reasons for additional posiage payment on reverse side under No. of Pieces Rete/Piece Postage
[ Ses reverse side $

" [ check it spplicable third-class bulk piece rate is sffixed to each piece. (Form 3602-PC required)

12 Total Postage

TOTAL POSTAGE ( pius /0) where applicable —{> s 951.33

* The signature of a noaprofit mailer certifies that: (1) The mailing does not violate section 623.5 DMM; and (2) Only the mailer's maner is being mailed; And(J)Thuunou

cooperative mailing with other persons or organizations that are not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges; and (4) This mailing has not been undertaken by the mailer on
behalf of or produced for another person or organization that is not entitled to special bulk mailing privileges.

The submussion of a false, fictitious or fraudulent statement may result in imprisogment of up (0 5 years and a fine of up to $10,000. (18 U.S.C. 1001) In addition, a civil penaity
of up to $5,000 and an additionsl assessment of twice the amount falsely claimed may be imposed. (31 U.S.C. 3802)

1 hereby cortify that all information furaished on this form is accurste and truthful, and that this material presented qualifies for the rates of postage claimed.

MHU‘ (wm are liable for any posiage deficiency incurred) Telephone No.

T

wunm hmdwmﬂ.-ﬂmm
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGION D ¢ 20463

May 12, 1989

Bill Vvincent
Citizen Alert
P.O. Box 1681
Las Vegas, Nevada 89125

RE: MUR 2844

Dear Mr. Vincent:

This letter acknowledges receipt on May 8, 1989, of the
supplement to the complaint you filed on April 11, 1989, against
the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association. The respondent
will be sent copies of the supplement. You will be notified as
soon as the Federal Election Commission takes final action on
your complaint.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

George F. .rZ? W

Acting Assocxate General
Counsel




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON DO 204618

May 12, 1989

Max G. Christiansen
Nevada Sportsmen and
Outdoorsmen Association
5332 West Oakey Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

RE: MUR 2844

Dear Mr. Christiansen:

8

On April 11, 1989, the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen
Association was notified that the Federal Election Commission
received a complaint from Citizen Alert alleging violations of
™ certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended. At that time you were given a copy of the complaint

,.
»

5 and informed that a response to the complaint should be submitted

~ within 15 days of receipt of the notification.

(o] On May 8, 1989, the Commission received additional
information from the complainant pertaining to the allegations

L in the complaint. Enclosed is a copy of this additional

c information.

c If you have any questions, please contact Jeffrey Long, the

o staff member assigned to this matter, at (202) 376-5690.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
Gengral Counsel
/.'—7 /' 7
4,7. /
BY: George F. Rishel

Acting Associate General
Counsel

" Enclosure




' PEDERAL ELECTION COMNISSION
! 999 B Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20463 SENSITIVE

FIRST GEWNERAL COUNSEL’'S REPORT

COMPLAINANT:

RESPONDENT:

RELEVANT STATUTE(S):

INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED:

FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED:

I. GENERATION OF MATTER

MUR: 2844

DATE COMPLAINT RECEIVED

BY OGC: April 4, 1989

DATE OF NOTIFICATION TO
RESPONDENT: April 11, 1989
STAFF MEMBER: Terrence Graves

Citizen Alert

Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen
Association

2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(B)(1iii)
.C. § 434(c)

C. § 441b

C. § 441b(b)(2)(A)

.S
.S.
.S.
(&
cC.

U
U
U

F.R. § 114.3(a) and (b)

F.R. § 100.8(b)(4)

11 C.F.R. § 104.6

Advisory Opinions 1982-2, 1984-13
1984-23, 1987-5, 1988-38

N/A

The Office of the General Counsel received a complaint dated

March 24, 1989 from Citizen Alert ("Complainant”") on April {4,

1989, in which it alleged violations of the Federal Election

Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act") by the Nevada

Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association ("Respondent").

Attachment I. This Office received a response on May 1, 1989,

from Max G. Christiansen, Respondent’s Secretary.

Attachment III. A supplement to the complaint was received on

May 8, 1989. Attachment II.
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II. PACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYS1S
The Nevada Sportsaen and Outdoorsmen Association is a

non-profit cotporatiqn'1nc6m90tat.drundcr,tho laws of Nevada in
October 1988. id;ponddﬁt ?utporta to be "organized for
charitable, cducatibnal ana“clbénalynaty putrposes TR (1
Attachment I. Roljondcntl also state in thcir Articles of
Incorporation that in order’to facilitate these purposes they
intend to make "distributions to organizations that qualify as
exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954 ...." Id.

Complainant alleges that Respondent carried on activities in
violation of the Act specifically, a series of bulk mailings and
the placement of an advertisement in a publication. According to
the complaint, the bulk mailings were made prior to the November
1988 election in an attempt to influence votes for candidates for
the U.S. Congress. The Complainant included a sample mailing
with the complaint. The sample mailing explicitly advocates the
election of three candidates to the U.S. Congress. The
Respondent allegedly spent $13,936.42 in postage between July 27,
1988 and October 31, 1988. Complainant supports this allegation
through documentation attached to the supplement to the
complaint. See Attachment I1. The information contained in the

documentation is summarized below in Table I.
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Table I,

: Lg® Number of Postage
Date of Mailing : Pieces Mailed Cost

/ ; : L7 S 128.42
9/14/88 : 232 30.62
9/16/88 403 54.10
9/21/88 453 63.83
9/28/88 751 103.82
10/11/88 15,717 2,074.64
10/12/88 27,108 3,724.80
10/27/88 7,093 951.33
10/28/88 1,070 142.74
10/28/86 2,;08 ;6;.29
10/31/88 47,604 6,299.13

Totals 103,856 $13.936. 41

The second violation of the Act involved the placement of an

advertisement in a publication entitled Southwest Outdoor &

Recreation. This is apparently an independent monthly
publication with a general public circulation of approximately
15,000 that is devoted to outdoor recreation such as hunting,
camping, and fishing. The Respondent allegedly placed a full
back page advertisement in the October 1988 issue at a cost of
$1,200.00. Complainant included the advertisement rate schedule
outlining the rates for different advertisements in the
publication. The advertisement’s content was the same as the
bulk mailing piece. It also expressly advocated the election of
three candidates for the U.S. Congress.

The response received on May 1, 1989 is very basic. See
Attachment III. It acknowledges receipt of the notification of
the complaint, and then proceeds to deny any awareness of or

intent to violate any federal or state laws. Respondent also

denies that it is involved in political activities.




The issues raised by the allegations and factual

circumstances are as follows: (1) whether respondent’s ads and

mailings constitute a violation of § 441b of the Federal Election
Campaign Act’s prohibition of expenditures or contributions by
corporations in connection with a federal election; (2) whether
respondent’s bulk mailings meet the requirements of action
consistent with the regulations at 11 C.F.R. § 114.3 allowing
communications with members of its restricted class and if so,
whether the respondent has met the reporting requirements
outlined in 2 U.8.C. § 431(9)(B)(iii) and 11 C.F.R.

§§ 100.8(b)(4) and 104.6; (3) whether respondent meets the

three-part test used by the Supreme Court in FEC v. Massachusetts

Citizens for Life, Inc., 479 U.S. 238 (1986)("MCFL") and if so,

whether respondent has met the reporting requirements set forth
in 2 U.S.C. § 434(c); (4) whether Respondent violated § 441d of
the Act by not including a disclaimer on the ad and mailings.

A. Corporate Prohibition

The question of whether or not respondent’s action
constituted a violation of § 441b is the first issue. Section
441b prohibits contributions or expenditures by corporations in
connection with federal elections. Section 441b(b)(2)(A) states
that such contributions or expenditures shall not include - "(a)
communications by a corporation to its stockholders and executive
or administrative personnel and their families on any subject."
Commission regulations explain that this exception also applies
to communications by an incorporated membership organization to

its members and executive or administrative personnel, and their




B

families. 11 C.P.R. § 114.3(a)(2); See also, Advisory
1984-23. £ A

i

opinion

There is not enough information presently available to make
a determination whether or not NSOA is a membership organisation.
The articles of incorporation alone are not sufficient to
determine if the Association has a formal document providing for
nembers and, if so, whether such persons have a right to
participate in the governance of the Association and a
predetermined minimum financial obligation. See Advisory

Opinions 1988-38 and 1987-5. See also, FEC v. National Right to

Work Committee, 459 U.S. 197 (1982). 1In any event, the various

quantities of the mailings, particularly the 47,000+ mailed on
October 31, 1988, suggest that the bulk mailings went to the
general public. 1In its response, NSOA’s secretary says it was
"trying to protect our wilderness rights in the best way we knew
how."” The amount of the mailings further suggest that the
association may have purchased or rented a mailing list.
Moreover, the advertisement was placed in a publication that is
distributed to the general public. This ad is not a
communication to the restricted class covered by § 441b(b)(2)(A).
Therefore, there is reason to believe the Respondent has violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b with respect to both the ad and the bulk mailing.

B. Internal Communication Reporting

If it is determined that NSOA is a membership organization,
a question would arise regarding the reporting requirements of
2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(B)(iii) and 11 C.F.R. § 100.8(B)(4) and 104.6,

which also apply to any mailings sent to members of the
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association if the cost of the communications are over 32.0&6 in

the aggregate. No recommendation is made at this time on the

issue pending responses from NSOA to the proposed quootions.l
C. NCPL

The next issue is whether rcipondcnt meets the three part

test set up by the Supreme Court in PEC v. Massachusetts Citizens
for Life, Inc. The three part test in the opinion asks: (1) if

the organization was "formed for the express purpose of promoting
political ideas ...."; (2) if the organisation "has no
shareholders or other persons affiliated so as to have claim on
its assets or earnings"; and (3) if it was "established by a
business corporation or a labor union" and whether it has a
policy of accepting contributions from such entities. 1Id. at
264. The respondent states in its articles of incorporation that
its purpose is that of a "non-profit corporation for charitable
educational, and eleemosynary purposes”". Respondent also states
in its response to the complaint that it was not involved in
political activities, but it does not state whether it was formed
to promote political ideas or if it is engaged in business
activities. Therefore, it is not clear whether respondent is a
group formed expressly to promote political ideas.

The second prong of the test also cannot be answered at this
time because of a lack of information. However, respondent does

state in Article VI of its Articles of Incorporation that no part

1. This provision would apply to the mailings to members made
both before and after incorporation, since Section 431(9)(B)(iii)
applies to both a "membership organization" or "a corporation”.
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of the net earnings of the corporation shall be used for the .

benefit or be distributed to its members, trustees, officers, or
other persons. Respondent also states in Article VII of ite
Articles of Incorporation that upon the dissolution of the
corporation all assets remaining after the settlement of
liabilities shall be given to organizations organized for
charitable, educational, religious, or scientific purposes.
Attachment I. More information is needed to clarify whether
there are any shareholders or other affiliated persons with a
claim to any of respondent’s assets or earnings.

Regarding the third prong of the test, we note that although
there is no mention in respondent’s Articles of Incorporation of
any affiliation to any business corporation, more information is
needed to determine if the Respondent was established by a
corporation. Furthermore, at present, there is no information
about the respondent by which to determine the sources of its
contributions or whether it has a policy regarding the acceptance
of corporate contributions. Accordingly, respondent would seem
to fall into the group of organizations that are not exempt from
§ 441b of the Act.

If the Respondent is able to demonstrate that it is an MCFL
corporation, we note that it has not made any type of report
regarding its payments for the ad and those mailings outside its
restricted class. Section 434(c) requires that every person
other than a political committee who makes independent
expenditures in an aggregate amount or value in excess of $250

during a calendar year shall file an appropriate statement. See
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also, FEC v. MCFL, 479 U.S. at 262. Respondent has spent in

excess of $15,000 on a general public political ad and on bulk
mailings that expressly advocated the election of three clearly
identified federal candidates during calendar year 1988. No
report or statement has been filed to date. Thus, there is also
reason to believe the Respondent has violated 2 U.8.C. § 434(c).2

D. Disclaimer

There was no disclaimer placed on the advertisement or the
mailings by respondents. Section 441d(a)(3) requires that if the
communications were not authorized by a candidate, an authorized
political committee of a candidate, or its agents that a
statement of who paid for the communication and a statement that
the candidate or the candidate’s committee did not authorize the
communication be on the communication. The required statements
are not on the mailings or the advertisement. Therefore, there
is reason to believe the Respondent has violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d.

E. SUMMARY

In summary and based on the facts and legal analysis

outlined above, this office recommends that the Commission find

2. We note that because NSOA incorporated on or about October 19,
1988, its bulk mailings prior to that date (for which it spent
$6,178.23 on postage costs) would not have been subject to the
prohibition of Section 441b. Because it appears that the
mailings were made to the general public independently of the
three identified candidates, there is still an apparent

Section 434(c) reporting requirement whether or not NSOA
qualifies for the MCFL exemptions or is a membership
organization. See also, footnote 1. If the mailings were
coordinated with the candidates, then questions regarding the
contribution limitations of 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A) would arise
as well as those of Section 441b. The proposed questions seek
information that should resolve these questions.




reason to believe that the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen

Association violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b, 434(c), and 441d.° The

proposed interrogatories and requests for documents seek the

information necessary to resolve the questions noted in this

report.

II1I. RECONMENDATIONS

1. Find reason to believe that the Nevada Sportsmen and
Outdoorsmen Association violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b, 434(c), and
441d.

2. Approve the attached letter, factual and legal analysis, and
interrogatories and requests for documents.

7/%;/@ 5

Date '/f

Lo General Counsel

8
r
O Attachments
1. Complaint

“7 2. Supplement to Complaint
-

(i

e

3. Response
4. Proposed letter, Factual and Legal Analysis,
and Interrogatories and Requests for Documents

3. If the Respondent does not qualify as an MCFL corporation, the
Commission has generally treated the disclaimer violation as
subsumed in the broader Section 441b violation with respect to
the general public political ad and the mailings outside the
restricted class. With regard to any mailings within the
restricted class, the Commission has previously stated that
communications to a restricted class are not general public
political advertising. See 11 C.F.R. 110.11(a)(1){(iv)(B) and
Advisory Opinion 1980-71. Also, Section 441d would still apply
to the mailings made to the general public prior to
incorporation.




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
) MUR 2844
Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen )

Association )

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, Secretary of the Federal
Election Cbmmission, do hereby certify that on July 31,
1989, the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 to take
the following actions in MUR 2844:

1. Find reason to believe that the Nevada
Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b, 434 (c),
and 4414 as recommended in the
General Counsel's Report dated July 26,
1989.

2. Approve the letter, factual and legal
analysis, and interrogatories and
requests for documents as recommended
in the General Counsel's Report dated
July 26, 1989.
Commissioners Aikens, Elliott, Josefiak, McDonald,

McGarry, and Thomas voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:

8-1-29

Date Marjorie W. Emmons
Secretary of the Commission

Received in the Office of Commission Secretary:Wed., July 26, 1989 2:03
Circulated on 48 hour tally basis: Thur., July 27, 1989 11:00
Deadline for vote: Mon., July 31, 1989 11:00




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C* 20463 1

e, August 4, 1989

Mr. Max G. Christiansen
Nevada Sportsmen and
Outdoorsmen Association
5332 west Oakey Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

MUR 2844
Nevada Sportsmen and
Outdoorsmen Association

Dear Mr. Christiansen:

On April 11, 1989, the Federal Election Commission notified
the Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association ("NSOA") and
you, as secretary of a complaint alleging violations of certain
sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended
("the Act") A copy of the complaint was forwarded to you at that
time.

Upon further review of the allegations contained in the
complaint, information supplied by Citizen Alert, the Commission,
on July 31, 1989, found that there is reason to believe the
NSOA violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b, 441d and 434(c) of the Act.

The Factual and Legal Analysis, which formed a basis for the
Commission’s finding, is attached for your information.

Under the Act, you have an opportunity to demonstrate that
no action should be taken against the NSOA. You may submit any
factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the
Commission’s consideration of this matter. Please submit such
materials to the General Counsel’s Office along with answers to
the enclosed questions within 15 days of receipt of this letter.
Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath.

: - =In the absence-of any additional informatidn demonstrating
that no further action should be taken against the NSOA, the
Commission may find probable cause to believe that a violation
has occurred and proceed with conciliation.

If you are interested in pursuing pre-probable cause
conciliation, you should so request in writing. See 11 C.F.R.
§ 111.18(d). Upon receipt of the request, the Office of the
General Counsel will make recommendations to the Commission




=

Max G. Christiansen
Paqe 2
A0 . : L0 - . . .' 5

. either ptoposing an egteenent in settlement of the matter or

recommending declining that pre-probable cause conciliation be
pursued. The Office of the General Counsel may recommend that
pre-probable cause conciliation not be entered into at this time
so that it may complete its investigation of the matter.
Further, the Commission will not entertain requests for
pre-probable cause conciliation after briefs on probable cause
have been mailed to the respondent.

Requests for extensions of time will not be routinely
granted. Requests must be made in writing at least five days
prior to the due date of the response and specific good cause
must be demonstrated. 1In addition, the Office of the General
Counsel ordinarily will not give extensions beyond -20 days.

If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter,
please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form
stating the name, address, and telephone number of such counsel,
and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and
other communications from the Commission.

This matter will remain confidential in accordance with
2 U.S.C. §§ 437qg(a)(4)(B) and 437g(a)(12)(A) unless you notify
the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made
public.

If you have any questions, please contact George Rishel,
the staff member assigned to this matter, at (202) 376-8200.

Sincerely,
1

iy .
v Sl
.-
N

Danny L. McDonald
Chairman

Enclosures

Quéstions e
Designation of Counsel Form
Factual & Legal Analysis
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n BEPORE THE PEDERAL ELECTION COMNTBSION

'Xp the Matter of 3

MUR 2844

INTERROGATORIES AND REQUEST
FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

TO: Max G. Christiansen
Nevada Sportsmen and Outdoorsmen Association

4332 West Oakey Boulevard

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

In furtherance of its investigation in the above-captioned
matter, the Federal Election Commission hereby requests that you

submit answers in writing and under oath to the questions set

forth below within 15 days of your receipt of this request. 1In
addition, the Commission hereby requests that you produce the
documents specified below, in their entirety, for inspection and
copying at the Office of the General Counsel, Pederal Election
Commission, Room 659, 999 E Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20463,

on or before the same deadline, and continue to produce those

documents each day thereafter as may be necessary for counsel for
the éommission to complete their examination and reproduction of
those documents. Clear and legible copies or duplicates of the
documents which, where applicable, show both_sides of the

documents may be submitted in lieu of the production of the

originals. .
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- . 3. gy INSTRUCTIONS -
In answering these interrogatories and request for
. production of documents, furnish all documents and other
information, however obtained, including hearsay, that is in
possession of, known by or otherwise available to you, including
documents and information appearing in your records.

Each answer is to be given separately and independently, and
unless specifically stated in the particwlar discovery request,
no answer shall be given solely by reference either to another
answer or to an exhibit attached to your response.

The response to each interrogatory propounded herein shall
set forth separately the identification of each person capable of
furnishing testimony concerning the response given, denoting
separately those individuals who provided informational,
documentary or other input, and those who assisted in drafting
the interrogatory response.

If you cannot answer the following interrogatories in full
after exercising due diligence to secure the full information to
do so, answer to the extent possible and indicate your inability
to answer the remainder, stating whatever information or
knowledge you have concerning the unanswered portion and
detailing what you did in attempting to secure the unknown
information.

Should you claim a privilege with respect to any documents,
communications, or other items about which information is
requested by any of the following interrogatories and requests
for production of documents, describe such items in sufficient
detail to provide justification for the claim. Each claim of
privilege must specify in detail all the grounds on which it
rests.

Unless otherwise indicated, the discovery request shall
refer to the time period from January 1, 1988 to December 31,
1988.

The following interrogatories and requests for production of
—===documents are-continuing in nature so as to require you to file--*--- -. -
supplementary responses or amendments during the course of this
investigation if you obtain further or different information
prior to or during the pendency of this matter. Include in any .
supplemental answers the date upon which and the manner in which
such further or different information came to your attention.
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_ DEPINITIONS
For the purpﬁée of these discovery requests, including the -
instructions thereto, the terms listed below are defined as

"NSOA" shall mean Nevada Sportsmen and Outsdoorsmen
Association, including all subsidiaries, divisions, departments,
accounts and branches, and all officers, employees, agents or
attorneys thereof.

"You" shall mean the named respondent in this action to whom
these discovery requests are addressed, including all officers,
employees, agents or attorneys thereof.

"Persons” shall be deei.ed to include both singular and
plural, and shall mean any natural person, partnership,
committee, association, corporation, or any other type of
organization or entity.

"Document” shall mean the original and all non-identical
copies, including drafts, of all papers and records of every type
in your possession, custody, or control, or known by you to
exist. The term document includes, but is not limited to books,
letters, contracts, notes, diaries, log sheets, records of
telephone communications, transcripts, vouchers, accounting
statements, ledgers, checks, money orders or other commercial
paper, telegrams, telexes, pamphlets, circulars, leaflets,
reports, memoranda, correspondence, surveys, tabulations, audio
and video recordings, drawings, photographs, graphs, charts,
diagrams, lists, computer print-outs, and all other writings and
other data compilations from which information can be obtained.

"Identify" with respect to a document shall mean state the
nature or type of document (e.g., letter, memorandum), the date,
if any, appearing thereon, the date on which the document was
prepared, the title of the document, the general subject matter
of the document, the location of the document, the number of
pages comprising the document.

"Identify” with respect to a person shall mean state the
ull name, the most recent business.and residence addresses and
the telephone numbers, the present occupation or position of such
person, the nature of the connection or association that person
has to any party in this proceeding. If the person to be .
identified is not a natural person, provide the legal and trade
names, the address and telephone number, and the full names of
both the chief executive officer and the agent designated to
receive service of process for such person.




MUR 2844 é
Page 4 T .. :

-
-

"And" as well as "or" shall be-eonstrued disjunctively 6r
conjunctively as necessary to bring within.the scope of these
interrogatories and requests for the production of documents any
documents and materials which may otherwise be construed to be
out of their scope.

INTERROGATORIES AND REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS

State whether NSOA is a membership organization. 1If so
then, for calendar 1988 state the total number of NSOA
members.

If the answer to Interrogatory 1 is yes, then state the
criteria NSOA uses to determine membership.

(a) Describe NSOA’s annual membership dues structure

(b) If NSOA has different classifications of members,
please list each classification, and the numbers of
members in each classification.

List and describe all benefits of membership provided
by NSOA, including but not limited to publications,
services, insurance policies, credit cards, car or
equipment rental discounts, or any other services
offered either for sale or no charge or at a discount.
As to each good, service or benefit described, detail
the extent to which, if at all, it is made available or
accessible to non-members.

If the answer to Interrogatory 1 is yes, then state the
total amount of moriey received by NSOA in membership dues
for calendar year 1988.

State all of NSOA’s sources of revenue other than membership
dues. List each source of income by type of activity
generating such revenue and state the amount received by
NSOA for 1988 from each source.

State whether NSOA hés a policy against accepting or has
accepted contributions from business corporations, and pther
types of corporations or labor unions.

(a) If so, when was the policy adopted; how and in what
manner was it adopted? Identify all documents in which
such policy has been reduced to writing.

State the number of corporate/labor union members and
the amount of membership dues collected from them for
1988.
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~{c) Identify each cotporafhylhbot ugion nénber and the
amount paid in membership dues by each.

6. State whether NSOA has. any individual memberships paid for
by corporations/labor unions or charged to corporate/union
accounts.

1. 1f the answer to Interrogatory 6 is yes, then please list
for 1988:

(a) the total number of corporation-paid and labor
union-paid memberships; _

o)
o (b) the name and address of each corporation or union which
' paid for the individual membership;
e
(c) the nature of the business or other activity engaged in
™ by each corporation listed in subsection b.
8. State NSOA’s gross receipts and expenditures for calendar
~ year 1988.
o 9. List each magazine or other periodical published and/or
distributed by NSOA.
= (a) For each magazine or other publication, list the total
amount of money received from paid advertisements for
1988.
g (b} State whether the funds collected from paid

advertisements for the publications listed in
subsection (a) go into NSOA’s general treasury?

If not, into what account are such funds deposited
and state how the funds are spent?

10. List each NSOA conference, meeting, or other event
sponsored, cosponsored, subsidized, or otherwise supported
by any business corporation or labor organization during
calendar year 1988. As to each such event, list the
o Iiass= - - business corporations or labor unions-involved -and the-. =+ =t mwcmwms
nature and the dollar amount of the support. In addition,
identify all documents which contain information relating to
the value, amount of nature of corporate or union labor
support for activities in which NSOA is or has been
involved.
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11.

WQ!Q the series of bulk mailings made by NSOA during the
period August 1, 1988 - October 31, 1988 directed towards'
members of NSOA? Did NSOA rent or purchase any mailing’
lists to facilitate these mailings. Identify all documents
related to such mailings.

Please identify all costs related to the bulk nallingl.
Include the costs of production, art work, printing, rental
or purchase of mailing lists, and any othor incidental costs
related to the mailings. Please provide copies of any
invoices related to these costs.

State whether the NSOA has filed for or claims tax exempt
status under the I.R.S. Code.

(a) If so, has the NSOA filed either form 990 or 990T with
the I.R.S. for 1988. Please provide a copy of any suc<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>